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Fiddletown (California Historical Landmark #35) is located along the north fork of
Dry Creek in the foothills of the Sierra Nevada mountains. Northern Amador County
was rich in placer mining during the early 1850's and this pleasant valley along
Dry Creek was an ideal townsite.

Wagons and tents were the first homes of the prospectors from Missouri who settled
Fiddletown in 1849. The town grew slowly until 1852 when nearby placer mines

started to produce gold in large quantities. By 1853 there were about 100 homes

and businesses situated on either side of Dry Creek. Main street paralleled the creek
on the south and Jibboom Street paralleled the creek on the north. A few cross

streets and alleys with narrow bridges joined the two primary streets. A gulch on

the west end of town marked the edge of the large Chinese section which extended west
and included businesses, homes, shacks, cemetery, and farms.

On either side of the narrow main street with its raised sidewalks there are many
buildings remaining from the town's period of historical significance as an early
mining town. Two excellent examples of local brick with iron shuttered doors,
dating from the early 1850's and in use today, are the general store and the black-
smith shop (now an antique shop). On Jibboom Street is an 1860's Classic Revival
cottage which stands in good repair surrounded by old fashioned gardens. Farther
down Jibboom Street is the site of the first lumber mill in Fiddletown. Several
homes remain which were built with lumber from this mill. The largest building on
Main Street is the Schallhorn Building, constructed in 1870 of hand-hewn

volcanic tuff blocks. It was formerly a blacksmith and wagon shop. Across the
street is a Gothic Revival home awaiting restoration.

In the early 18590's the first Fiddletown school was built on the top of the hill
south of town. This was replaced in 1860 by a clapboarded schoolhouse which is in
good repair and currently serves as a meeting place. Across the street from the
schoolhouse is the cemetery, which dates from 1856.

In the Chinese section, west of town, there are partial remains of native rock
buildings and complete buildings of adobe, native rock, and local brick. The most
unusual building is an early 1850's rammed earth which is now the museum.

Unfortunately, some changes have intruded upon the integrity of the district, such
as additions in design and fabric to old structures, and a few new structures. In
general, however, Fiddletown strongly retains the flavor of its early mining town
days.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

FIDDLETOWN

The name Fiddletown is a colorful reminder of the gold rush era. The town is said
to have received its name because the earliest settlers from Missouri who founded
the town, in 1849, enjoyed fiddling. The name Fiddletown was immortalized in a
short story by Bret Harte entitled "An Episode of Fiddletown'. However, the name
was a source of embarrassment for Judge Purington, an early resident of the town.
On his annual trips to San Francisco and Sacramento, he was jokingly called "the
man from Fiddletown". He was influential in having the name changed to Oleta by
an act of the State Legislature in 1878. However, through the efforts of the
Committee of Historical Landmarks of the California Historical Society, the old
name Fiddletown was restored in 1932.

In the early 1850's and 1860's, Fiddletown was the trading center for a number
of rich placer mining areas including American Flat, American Hill, French Flat,
Loafer Flat, Lone Hill and others. In addition to local mining and trading
operations, the town was also the site of a steam powered sawmill, built in 1853
by H. C. Farnham and James McLeod. The mill provided lumber from local forests
for the many frame houses built in the area. Local brick was also manufactured
for construction of a number of the town's early buildings.

Today, Fiddletown is a quiet rural community in the foothills of the Sierra Nevada.
The main street follows the creek winding through the narrow valley. The town is
laid out in linear fashion with Main Street paralleling the creek on the south
side and another street, Jibboom Street paralleling the creek on the north. Along
the Main Street stand the remaining business buildings and Chinese section of the
town of Fiddletown. A number of buildings have disappeared since the Gold Rush
days leaving the town with a more open feeling which has been filled in largely
with vegetation. Modern construction in Fiddletown in noticeably absent. An
exception is the Fiddletown Emporium, recently constructed in a western false-
front motif and a new home being erected on Main Street on the site of the former
Post Office whose design is reminiscent of the Post Office and retains as much of
the original material as was salvageable. However, the majority of the town's
buildings, which remain, date from the Gold Rush period.

The community has the overall feeling of a quiet village of the mid-to-late 19th
century. The Chinese settlement at the lower end of Main Street contains the old
Chinese gambling hall, and directly across the street from the Chew Kee Store.
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Inventory of Historic Structures Located Within the Fiddletown Historic District.

1.

10.

Chew Kee Store (Chinese Museum) (West Main Street): early 1850's, Rammed
earth construction, galvanized and composition roof replaced original long
wood shingles (DMBS Ama-H11).

Chinese Gambling House (West Main Street): representative of the early
1850 style building with a brick front and schist-mud lime mortar walls
(DMBS Ama-H13).

Chinese Brick Store (West Main Street): ca. 1850, 2 story brick-covered
stone walled store (DMBS Ama-H12); double square door opening and elaborate
brick cornice across top. The raised sidewalk is part of the building.

Chinese adobe building (500 feet south of California Historical Landmark 35,
West Main Street): ca. 1850, large adobe block construction, dimension 24' x
27'; heavy timber floor and beams; compacted earth ceiling under pitched roof.

Forge (former Blacksmith Shop), (Main Street): ca. 1852, brick (local) front,
sides lime-rubble mortar, keystone arch over iron doors. .

"Billie" Brown's Home (now Kaiser residence), (Main Street): ca. 1852,
single family dwelling; original building constructed of local brick (walls);
iron doors and pedimented entrance. Later, additions (wood) to original
structure were made compatible to initial design of home.

Atkinson's Store (Shelander residence) (Main Street): 1858, wood frame
building with vertical cover stripes; porch rails added later.

Wells Fargo Office (Community Hall--meeting room) Main Street: ca. 1853,
native brick construction; plaster front intrusion of design and fabric.

Fiddletown General Store (Main Street): ca. 1855, local brick construction;
iron doors; raised sidewalk in front.

Schallhorne Blacksmith and Wagon Shop (Main Street): 1870, a massive and
excellently constructed building erected of rectangular hewn blocks
(measuring 12 x 18 x 10 inches) of Valley Springs rhyolite tuff which is
easily worked when first guarded but hardened after exposure. (Source of
tuff, about 1.5 miles east of Fiddletown). (DMBS Ama-H10).

P!
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11. Cooper residence (Main & Church Streets): ca. 1861, Gothic revival;
partially destroyed by fire early 1975; restoration 1s planned.

12. Fiddletown & Masonic Cemeteries (Church Street): 1856.
13. St. Marks Lodge No. 115, F. & A.M. (Church Street) site, Masonic Cemetery.

14. Oleta School (Fiddletown School) (Church Street): ca. 1860, wood frame
construction, clapboard siding; porch across front of building; belfry
with bell. Pny:?

15. Judge Purington's Home (East Main): 1856, wood frame construction;
clapboard siding.

16. James Head Home (Tieslau residence) (Jibboom Street): ca. 1862, classic
revival cottage; 2 story, dormer windows, elaborate barge boards, shingle
roof, local brick base. (Wjﬂﬁ

17. Farnham Ranch (Jibboom Street): ca. 1852, frontier style, unpainted wood
siding; original barn and out buildings.

18. Chinese ruins (Tieslau property) (Fiddletown-Silver Lake Road near west
boundary of Fiddletown historic district): early 1850s, site of Chinese farming,
native rock remains of Chinese fireplace and building foundations.immediately
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Intrusions to the District
1. Two 1950's ranch houses and auxiliary buildings, including two barns, one

2,

10.

11,

12,
13.
k.
15.

16.

17.

metal shed, one garage, and one pump house. Style incompatible.

1940's cottage, two small wood-frame outbuildings, garage, small bridge.
Style incompatible.

19L40's ranch house. Style incompatible.
Single-story, small metal shed. Materials incompatible.

Two two-story metal sheds joined with single-story building. Materials and
style incompatible.

Wood-frame board and batten house of 1960's vintage with scalloped birch
board. Style incompatible,

Yellow wood-frame clapboard cottage of 1920's vintage. Color and style incom-
patible.

Large, one-story barn-like structure. Style incompatible -- relatively modern.

Fiddler's Emporium -- constructed in 1920's to resemble Gold Rush Era. In-
tegrity questionable as it is contemporary version of historie structure.

Small Kaiser intrusion, new addition to 19th Century structure.

Contemporary wood-frame structure compatible in style and materials, and
similar in design to original structure on site.

Small, 1920's stucco structure.,

Early 1900's wood-frame cottage well set back from street.
1950's tract ranch house. Style incompatible.

1930's red wooden shed used for Fire Department storage.

Fiddler's Inn -~ two-story stucco structure of 1930's or 1940's. Style in-
compatible,

Comunity Club -=- 1930's structure with oversized fiddle mounted in the front.
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1.

2.

Se
L,

S

6.

7

9.
10.
11.
12,
13.
14,
15.
16.

List of Intrusions in Fiddletown Historic District

Two ca. 1950's ranch houses and auxiliary buildings, including two barns,
one metal shed, one garage, and one pump house. Located at the edge of
the district in a rural setting; does not intrude upon townscape.

Ca. 1940's cottage with two small wood-frame outbuildings, garage, and
small bridge; complex is set back across creek at the edge of the district
in an area of openspace and does not intrude upon Fiddletown townscape.
Ca. 1940's ranch house; screened from district by trees.

Two two-story metal sheds,

Wood-frame board and batten house of ca. 1960's vintage with scalloped
verge boards.

Yankee Fiddler--constructed in 1970's to resemble a Gold Rush era
building. Is a new building which has no relationship to any which
may have previously existed at that site.

New wood-frame structure compatible in style and materials, and similar
in design to original structure on site. Some material from previous
building on that site was reused in the new construction.

Ca., 1950's tract-type ranch house.

Ca. 1960's single-story concrete block garage.

Single-story, 1950's flat-roofed, wood-sided red house.

Two metal garages.

Ca. 1940's stuaco cottage with garage.

Ca. 1950's large stucco church,

Ca. 1950's wood-frame cottage.

Ca. 1940's stucco cottage.

Large metal 1940's quonset hut.

THESE INTRUSIONS ARE KEYED TO THE ATTACHED SKETCH MAP IN RED
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18. Wells Fargo Building -- contemporary alteration from original,

19. Modified wood—frame 19th Century structure with concrete blocks and asphalt
siding modifications. Now a Post Office.

20. 1960's single-story concrete block garage. Style and materials incompatible.
21, Single-story, 1950's flat-roofed, wood-sided red house. Style incompatible.
22. Large metal garage. Materials incompatible,

23. Small metal garage. Materials incompatible.

2li. Green, wood-frame period cottage with altered and enlarged frame windows and
recent porch.

25. White 1940!'s cottage with garage.

26. 1940's wood-frame garage. Style incompatible.

27. 1950's large stucco church. Style, materials, and length incompatible.
28. 1950's wood-frame cottage. Style incompatible.

29. 1940's stucco cottage. Style incompatible.

30. large 1940's Quonset hut. Style and’materials incompatible.

31. White, two-story, 1920's house with asphalt siding.

32. Early 20th Century highly modified cottage with asphalt siding and three
small outbuildings.
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The sketch map locates 16 properties which intrude upon
the historic setting of the Fiddletown historic district.
The map also shows the locations of 18 properties which
are of primary importance to the district. Several

dozen other buildings exist, forming the matrix into

which the key properties and intrusions are set; these
additional buildings, while not individually distinguished,
do contribute to the overall sense of time and place of
the district.
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The area to the west of intrusion no. 5 was a rather densely populated area of
Chinese settlement during the Gold Rush era of the 1850's and 1860's. Chinese
settled along the banks of the now dry creek and the Chinese pharmacy, general
store, and gambling house served this population.

Other than these three structures, visible above-ground remnants of the earlier
Chinese settlement have almost totally disappeared. The area included in the
nomination is drawn to follow the natural contours of the hills and stream con-
figuration, where settlement would naturally have occurred. The Chinese set-
tlement was of considerable significance to the early development of Fiddle-
town and relates importantly to the existing remaining structures.

This area has not totally been surveyed for historic archeological resources.
Historic associations and the rich potential of historic archeological resources
Justify its inclusion in this district.
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This store is a rare example of rammed-earth adobe construction. Built in the
early 1850's, it was used by Dr. Yee and his son as an office, herb shop and
residence. Dr. Yee was succeeded in ownership of the building by Chew Kee who
operated a Chinese general store on the premises. The contents of the store
from all previous owners still remain in place and are of significant historical
value of a prime example of early California Chinese culture. The collection of
Chinese artifacts in the building has been described by at least one expert as
perhaps the most outstanding collection of Chinese-American culture in the
United States.

The Fiddletown Preservation Society is the caretaker of the building and the
contents have been left in place so that the building represents an early Chinese
merchandising outlet exactly as it appeared when it was in operation. Even the
living quarters in the back of the building have been left intact as they were
last used by the last occupant. The building is open on some weekends during

the year as a museum.

Near the Chinese store and gambling den, is located a third adobe structure from
the Chinese settlement. It is constructed of large adobe block and is located
on the hillside to the south of Main Street, several hundred feet up a narrow
roadway.

The upper portion of Main Street contains the present general store built in the
early 1850's, the former blacksmith shop, several brick buildings, Classical
Revival based residences in the rear, and the Cooper House, a large Gothic Revival
building which was partially destroyed by fire early in 1975. Across the street
from the Cooper House is the Schallhorn Building, which formerly operated as a
blacksmith and wagon shop. Other 19th century houses line the residential street
which parallels the creek on its north side. The schoolhouse and cemetery sit
above the town on a hillside to the south.

After the original 1850's schoolhouse was destroyed, the present schoolhouse was
built on the original site in 1860. It is typical of its type and period, based
upon Classical Revival lines with clapboard siding, a small belfry and a covered
front porch. Dennis Townsend, Fiddletown's first school teacher, later went on
to become Superintendent of Schools in Amador County, a post which he held for
many years.

Generally, the community of Fiddletown has retained much of its early feeling with

its narrow winding streets and buildings from the 1850's scattered along the streets.
Intrusions into the district have occurred mainly through attrition of former
buildings. Many of these vacant building sites have now been filled in by vegetation,
but very few modern intrusions exist. The town with its early structures and heavy
vegetation represents a pleasant rural setting which contains a large collection of
significant early structures dating from the California Gold Rush of the 1850's.

GPO 892 455
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Verbal Boundary Description:

Beginning at the NW corner of the NE 1/4 of Section 33, proceed S to the County
Road, Follow the Fiddletown Road in a SE direction to a point due N of the
westerly boundary of Lot #5, then proceed through Lot #2, S along the W boundary
of Lot #5, from the SW corner of Lot #5 take a straight line in a SE direction
to the SE corner of the cemetery Lot #27, proceed across Church Street, E around
and including all of Lot #14, at the NE corner of Lot #14 proceed N on Church
Street to Main Street, W on Main Street to a point where Dry Creek and Main
Street intersect in Lot #28, follow Dry Creek W to Church Street, N on Church
Street to the NE corner of Lot #18, follow the N & E boundaries of Lot #37,

N boundaries of Lots #16 and #24, at the NW corner of Lot #24 proceed S to Jibboom
Street, W on Jibboom Street to the SW corner of Lot #12, proceed N along the W
boundaries of Lots #12, #47, #50, #10, and #26, at the NW corner of Lot #26
proceed in a straight line to the NW corner of the NE 1/4 of Section 33 true
point of beginning. .
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UM references for Fiddletown Historic District:
10/695870/14261030
10/695720/1263620
10/69L8L0/L263980
10/69L660 /1261360
10/695160/L261360

mRowE

Acreage of nominated property: Approximately 65 acres.



